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NOW COME Plaintiffs, NORTHERN CALIFORNIA RIVER WATCH, a non-profit Corporation,
ROBERT. G. EVANS, SHERRY PETERSEN, DOUGLAS RAND EMERY as Individuals and DOES | -
10, Inclusive, (hereafter, “PLAINTIFFS”) by and through their attorney, and for their Complaint against
Defendants, CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF FISH AND GAME, CARL WILCOX, GENE COOLEY,
MATT PARLATO, ROBERT W. FLOERKE, SCHELLINGER PROPERTIES, L.LC, SCHELLINGER
CONSTRUCTION COMPANY, ARBORITA, LLC, HEATHER GLEN, LLC, CONCOURSE, LLC.
MEADOW TRAIL, LLC, ORLAND FAIRVIEW, LLC, WINTER CREEK, LI.C, PENBROOK, LLC,
FAIRVIEW VILLAGE OF ORLAND HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, COTTER HEALTH CENTERS,
INC., ASSESSMENT TECHNOLOGIES USA, LC, and DOES 1-10, INCLUSIVE, (hercafter,
“DEFENDANTS”), state as follows:

I. INTRODUCTION

1. This is civil action brought by PLAINTIFFS under the federal Endangered Species Act (hereafter,
“ESA”), 16 U.S.C. § 1531 et seq., specifically 16 U.S.C. § 1540(g)(1)(A), to stop DEFENDANTS from
ongoing violations of the ESA and California law in violation of the ESA. These violations are detailed in
the Notices of Violations and Intent to File Suit, hereinafter identified in this Complaint.

2. PLAINTIFFS seek declaratory relief, injunctive relief to prohibit future violations, the imposition
of civil penalties, and other relief for DEFENDANTS’ violations of the ESA.

3. Under 16 U.S.C. § 1531, Congress declared its purposes and policy in regard to the ESA. Congress,
having found that various species of wildlife, fish and plants in the United States had become extinct as a
result of “economic growth and development untempered by adequate concern and conservation,” enacted
the ESA, 16 U.S.C. § 1531 (a)(1), the purpose of which is to provide a program for conserving endangered
and threatened species and the ecosystems such species depend on. 16 U.S.C. § 1531(b)

II. JURISDICTIONAL ALLEGATIONS

4. Subject matter jurisdiction is conferred upon this Court by ESA § 11(g)(1)(A), 16 U.S.C. §
1540(g)(1)(A), which states in part, “any person may commence a civil suit on his own behalf . . . (A) to
enjoin any person, including the United States and any other governmental instrumentality or agency (to the

extent permitted by the eleventh amendment to the Constitution), who is alleged to be in violation of any
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provision of this Act or regulation issued under the authority thereof...” The district courts shall have
Jurisdiction, without regard to the amount in controversy or the citizenship of the parties, to enforce any such
provision or regulation or to order the Secretary to perform such act or duty, as the case may be. Under the
ESA “person” means, inter alia, an individual, corporation, partnership, trust, association, or any other
private entity. ESA § 3,16 U.S.C. § 1532. “Secretary” refers to the Secretary of the Interior who, acting
through the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, has jurisdiction over Ambystoma californiense, the California
tiger salamander (“Tiger Salamander”), and Limnanthes vinculans, Sebastopol meadowfoam (“Sebastopol
Meadowfoam™).

5. On or about July 21, 2006 and August 18, 2006 PLAINTIFFS provided notice of DEFENDANTS’
violations of the ESA, and of PLAINTIFFS’ intent to file suit against DEFENDANTS due to said violations,
(hereafter, “the Notices™) to (a) DEFENDANTS, (b) the United States Secretary of the Interior, (c) the
United States Secretary of Commerce (d) the United States Secretary of Agriculture () the United States
Fish and Wildlife Service (f) the United States Army Corps of Engineers, (g) the City of Sebastopol, and
(h) Marco Waaland/Golden Bear Biostudies as required by the ESA. A true and correct copy of the Notices
are attached hereto as EXHIBIT A and fully incorporated into this Complaint.

6. PLAINTIFFS reside in the vicinity of, derive livelihoods from or own property near the proposed
development situs of the DEFENDANTS' violations which are the subject of this Complaint and identified
in the Notices. The esthetic, ecological, educational, historical, recreational, and scientific interests of
PLAINTIFFS may be, have been, are being, and will continue to be adversely affected by DEFENDANTS'
unlawful violations of the ESA. Congress has declared endangered species of fish, wildlife and plants to
be intrinsically valuable to the Nation and its people. 16 U.S.C. § 1531(a)(3). Thus PLAINTIFFS contend
there exists an ongoing injury in fact to themselves as well as to the public at large, causation of that injury

being DEFENDANTS' complained of conduct, and a likelihood that the requested relief will redress that

injury.
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7. The United States is not currently prosecuting any criminal action to redress DEFENDANTS’
violations as alleged in this Complaint, nor has the Secretary of the Interior acted to impose a penalty

pursuant 16 U.S.C. § 1540 (a). Therefore this action may be commenced in accord with ESA §

III. INTRADISTRICT ASSIGNMENT

8. The basis for assignment of this case to the Northern District of California, pursuant to 16 U.S.C.
§ 1540(g)(3)(A), is that the violations of ESA complained of and the development situs of said violations
are located within this District.

IV. PARTIES
9. Plaintiff NORTHERN CALIFORNIA RIVER WATCH is a 501(¢)(3) non-profit public benefit
corporation duly organized under the laws of the State of California. Its headquarters are located in the City
of Sebastopol, Sonoma County, California. RIVER WATCH is dedicated to protecting, enhancing and
helping to restore the waters of Northern California, including its drinking water sources, groundwater,
rivers, creeks, tributaries, wetlands and vernal pools. Many of Northern California River Watch's members
live in the City of Sebastopol and other areas of Sonoma County.
10.  Plaintiff ROBERT G. EVANS is now and was at all times mentioned in this Complaint, an
individual residing in Sebastopol, Sonoma County, California.
11.  Plaintiff SHERRY PETERSEN is now and was at all times mentioned in this Complaint, an
individual residing in Sebastopol, Sonoma County, California.
12.  Plaintiff DOUGLAS RAND EMERY is now and was at all times mentioned in this Complaint, an
individual residing in Sebastopol, Sonoma County, California.
13.  PLAINTIFFS are informed and believe and on such information and belief allege that Defendant,
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF FISH AND GAME, is a governmental entity with administrative offices
located in Sacramento, California. Its Central Coast Region (Region 3) main office is located in Napa.
California, and local regional office located in Yountville, California.
14. PLAINTIFES are informed and believe and on such information and belief allege that Defendant,

CARL WILCOX is and was at all times mentioned in this Complaint, Habitat Conservation Manager at the
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CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF FISH AND GAME, working from the local regional office in

Yountville, California.

15. PLAINTIFFS are informed and believe and on such information and belief allege that Defendant,
GENE COOLEY, is and was at all times mentioned in this Complaint, an associate botanist at the
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF FISH AND GAME working from the local regional office in
Yountville, California.

16.  PLAINTIFFS are informed and believe and on such information and belief allege that Defendant,
MATT PARLATO, is and was at all times mentioned in this Complaint, a warden at the CALIFORNIA
DEPARTMENT OF FISH AND GAME working from the local regional office in Yountville, California.
17. PLAINTIFFS are informed and believe and on such information and belief allege that Defendant.
ROBERT FLOERKE, is and was at all times mentioned in this Complaint, an administrator at the
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF FISH AND GAME working from the local regional office in
Yountville, California.

18.  PLAINTIFFS are informed and believe and on such information and belief allege that Defendant,
SCHELLINGER PROPERTIES, LLC, is a limited liability corporation, organized under the laws of the
State of California, doing business and having a registered office in Santa Rosa, California.

19.  PLAINTIFFS are informed and believe and on such information and belief allege that Defendant
SCHELLINGER CONSTRUCTION COMPANY is a business entity organized under the laws of the State
of California, doing business and having a registered office in Santa Rosa, California.

20. PLAINTIFFS are informed and believe and on such information and belief allege that Defendant.
ARBORITA, LLC, is a limited liability corporation, organized under the laws of the State of California,
doing business and having a registered office in Santa Rosa, California.

21.  PLAINTIFFS are informed and believe and on such information and belief allege that Defendant,
HEATHER GLEN, LLC, is a limited liability corporation, organized under the laws of the State of

California, doing business and having a registered office in Santa Rosa, California.
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22, PLAINTIFFS are informed and believe and on such information and belief allege that Defendant,
CONCOURSE, LLC, is a limited liability corporation, organized under the laws of the State of California,
doing business and having a registered office in Santa Rosa, California.

23. PLAINTIFFS are informed and believe and on such information and belief allege that Defendant,
MEADOW TRAIL, LLC, is a limited liability corporation, organized under the laws of the State of
California, doing business and having a registered office in Santa Rosa, California.

24, PLAINTIFFS are informed and believe and on such information and belief allege that Defendant,
ORLAND FAIRVIEW, LLC, is a limited liability corporation organized under the laws of the State of
California, doing business and having a registered office in Santa Rosa, California.

25.  PLAINTIFFS are informed and believe and on such information and belief allege that Defendant,
WINTER CREEK, LLC, is alimited liability corporation organized under the laws of the State of California.
doing business and having a registered office in Santa Rosa, California.

26. PLAINTIFFS are informed and believe and on such information and belief allege that Defendant,
PENBROOK, LLC, is a limited liability corporation organized under the laws of the State of California,
doing business and having a registered office in Santa Rosa, California.

27. PLAINTIFFS are informed and believe and on such information and belief allege that Defendant,
FAIRVIEW VILLAGE OF ORLAND HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, is a business entity organized
under the laws of the State of California, doing business and having a registered office in Santa Rosa,
California.

28.  PLAINTIFFS are informed and believe and on such information and belief allege that Defendant,
COTTER HEALTH CENTERS, INC., is a corporation organized under the laws of the State of California
doing business in and having a registered office in Sebastopol, California.

29. PLAINTIFFS are informed and believe and on such information and belief allege that Defendant,
ASSESSMENT TECHNOLOGIES USA, LC, isalimited corporation organized under the laws ofthe State
of Texas, and having a registered office in San Antonio, Texas.

30. PLAINTIFFS are informed and believe and on such information and belief allege that DEFENDANTS

DOES 1-10, Inclusive, respectively, are persons, partnerships, corporations and entities, who are, or were,
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responsible for, or in some way contributed to, the violations which are the subject of this Complaint. The
names, identities, capacities, and functions of defendants DOES 1-10, Inclusive are presently unknown to
PLAINTIFFS. PLAINTIFES shall seek leave of court to amend this Complaint to insert the true names of
said DOE defendants when the same have been ascertained.

V. GENERAL ALLEGATIONS

31.  PLAINTIFFS are informed and believe and on such information and belief allege that DEFENDANT
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF FISH AND GAME maintains native fish, wildlife, plant species and
natural communities for their intrinsic and ecological value and their benefits to people. The CALIFORNIA
DEPARTMENT OF FISH AND GAME has jurisdiction over threatened or endangered species formally
listed by the State of California.

32. PLAINTIFFS are informed and believe and on such information and beliefallege that DEFENDANTS
CARL WILCOX, GENE COOLEY,MATT PARLATO and ROBERT FLOERKE are, and were at the time
of the violations alleged in this Complaint, agents of the CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF FISH AND
GAME in the capacities of Habitat Conservation Manager, associate botanist, warden and administrator,
respectively.

33. PLAINTIFFS are informed and believe and on such information and belief allege that DEFENDANTS
SCHELLINGER PROPERTIES, LLC, SCHELLINGER CONSTRUCTION COMPANY, ARBORITA,
LLC, HEATHER GLEN, LLC, CONCOURSE, LLC, MEADOW TRAIL, LLC, ORLAND FAIRVIEW,
LLC, WINTER CREEK, LLC, PENBROOK, LLC, FAIRVIEW VILLAGE OF ORLAND HOMEOWNERS
ASSOCIATION, and each, all or in some combination, propose to develop approximately 21.35 acres of
land located at 955, 995 and 997 Gravenstein, Highway South in the City of Sebastopol, Sonoma County,
California, assigned Assessor’s Parcel Numbers 004-390-003, 004-390-006, 004-390-009, 004-390-010,
004-390-011, and 151-010-012, and hereinafter referred to as the “BUILDING SITE”.

34. PLAINTIFFS are informed and believe and on such information and belief allege that DEFENDANTS
COTTER HEALTH CENTERS, INC. and ASSESSMENT TECHNOLOGIES USA, LC, are listed

landowners of the parcels identified in Paragraph 35 above.
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35.  The proposed BUILDING SITE currently consists primarily of undeveloped open space containing
five small residences and a 1,800 square foot daycare facility. The proposed development on the
BUILDING SITE , as conceived, is a planned community, consisting of 145 housing units of various sizes
and designs, and a 9.53-acre public open space/wetland preserve.

36.  Despite the fact that the BUILDING SITE lies within the range of the federally endangered Sonoma
County Distinct Population Segment of the Tiger salamander, and federally endangered Sebastopol
Meadowfoam, DEFENDANTS as developers, have made no provisions for protecting endangered species
or habitat. No state or federal agency has conducted proper endangered species surveys on the BUILDING
SITE. Although the United States Fish and Wildlife Service makes reference to seven plant surveys, the
surveys, conducted by the DEFENDANTS’ consultant, are not reliable. They were not conducted in the
appropriate season and were not conducted, apparently, under the proper protocols. Additionally, some
of the seasonal ponds and vernal pools on the BUILDING SITE have yet to be identified and delineated.

VI. STATUTORY AND REGULATORY BACKGROUND

37.  The purpose of the ESA is to “provide a means whereby the ecosystems upon which endangered
species and threatened species depend may be conserved, to provide a program for the conservation of such
endangered species.” 16 U.S.C § 1531(b). The ESA defines “conservation” to mean “use of all methods and
procedures which are necessary to bring any endangered or threatened species to the point at which” the
species no longer needs to be protected under the ESA. 16 U.S.C. § 1532(3).

38. ESA § 9, 16 US.C. § 1538(a)(2)(B), prohibits any person from “removing and reducing to
possession any such species from areas under federal jurisdiction, maliciously damaging or destroying any
such species on areas under federal jurisdiction, or removing, cutting, digging up, damaging or destroying
any such species on any other area in knowing violation of any state law.”

39.  ESA § 9 makes it unlawful for any person subject to the jurisdiction of the United States to "attempt
to commit, solicit another to commit, or cause to be committed," any of these offenses. 16 U.S.C. § 1538(g).
Thus, the prohibition applies to government permitting of activities that may indirectly cause a third party

to remove, damage, or destroy a listed species in violation of federal or state law.

Complaint for Injunctive Relief 8




10
1
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

40.  The Sebastopol Meadowfoam is listed as a Federal Endangered Species under the ESA of 1973, as
amended (16 U.S.C. § 1531 et seq). (Federal Register 6:61173; December 2, 1991).
41.  The 21.35 acres of the BUILDING SITE is comprised of 19 acres of grasslands containing seasonal
vernal pools, and an additional 1.84 acres which exist in the form of wet meadows, seasonal creeks, vernal
pools, vernal swales, and jurisdictional wetlands. The Army Corps of Engineers has declared 1.94 acres of
the BUILDING SITE to be federal jurisdictional wetlands.
42.  Pursuant to California Fish and Game Code § 1904 (Native Plant Protection Act of 1977) and
California Fish and Game Code §§ 2074.2 and 2075.5 (California Endangered Species Act of 1984),
relating to the listing of Endangered, Threatened and Rare species of plants and animals, Sebastopol
Meadowfoam, Limnanthes vinculans, was listed as a State Endangered Species in November 1979.
Published at Title 14, California Code of Regulations, § 670.2 (D).

VII. DEFENDANTS' VIOLATIONS

43, Onorabout May 23, 2005, DEFENDANT CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF FISH AND GAME
through its agents DEFENDANTS CARL WILCOX, GENE COOLEY, MATT PARLATO and ROBERT
FLOERKE, directed, authorized and/or otherwise participated in the digging up and removal of several
Sebastopol Meadowfoam plants from the BUILDING SITE, in violation of ESA § 9 and California law;
and with full knowledge that said Sebastopol Meadowfoam was a federally and state listed endangered
species. Said removal of the Sebastopol Meadowfoam accorded with no statutory "EXCEPTIONS" and
was not permitted by the Secretary of the Interior. ESA §§ 10(a)(1)(A) and (B), 16 U.S.C. §§
1539(a)(1)(A)and (B).

44,  The enumerated violations are detailed in the Notices, attached to this Complaint as Exhibit A, and

incorporated herein by reference, and below.

VIII. CLAIM FOR RELIEF

(ESA § 9,16 U.S.C. 1538)
45.  PLAINTIFFS incorporate the allegations set forth above in Paragraphs 1 through 44 and Exhibit A
as though fully set forth herein. PLAINTIFFS are informed and believe, and based on such information and

belief allege as follows:
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46. DEFENDANTS have violated ESA § 9(a)(2)(B), by removing and reducing to possession federally
listed endangered Sebastopol Meadowfoam from jurisdictional wetlands in violation of 16 U.S.C. §
1538(a)(2)(B).

47.  DEFENDANTS have violated ESA § 9(a)(2)(B), by maliciously damaging and destroying federally
listed endangered Sebastopol Meadowfoam on jurisdictional wetlands in violation of 16 U.S.C. §
1538(a)(2)(B).

48. DEFENDANTS have violated ESA § 9(a)(2)(B), by removing, cutting, digging up, damaging and
destroying a federally and state listed endangered species, specifically, Sebastopol Meadowfoam, in
violation of state law. 16 U.S.C. § 1538(a)(2)(B).

49.  DEFENDANTS have violated ESA § 9(a)(2)(B), 16 U.S.C. § 1538(a)(2)(B), by violating the
California Endangered Species Act which prohibits any person from taking or attempting to take any fish,
wildlife, or plant species listed as endangered or threatened, or any such species that is candidate for listing
under the California Endangered Species Act.. Fish & Game Code § 2080, § 2085. The ongoing harm to
the Sebastopol Meadowfoam at the BUILDING SITE falls into none of the California Endangered Species
Act exceptions. Fish & Game Code §§2081(a), 2080.1, 2835 and 2084.

50. Bydigging up and removing a federally and state listed endangered species of plant, DEFENDANTS
violated ESA § 9(a)(2)(B), 16 U.S.C. § 1538(a)(2)(B), by violating the Native Plant Protection Act which
protects endangered species of wild, native plants. Fish & Game Code §§ 1900, 1901.

51. DEFENDANTS further violated the ESA by way of a further violation of the Native Plant Protection
Act by failing to notify the owners and/or property developers of the BUILDING SITE of the presence of
the endangered plant; and, by failing to provide information about protection as required by law. Fish &
Game Code § 1911.

52. DEFENDANTS violations are ongoing and may continue after the filing of this Complaint.
PLAINTIFFS allege herein all violations which may have occurred or will occur prior to trial, but for which
data may not have been available to PLAINTIFFS prior to the filing of this Complaint. PLAINTIFFS will
file additional amended complaints to address Federal and/or State violations by DEFENDANTS that may

occur after the filing of this Complaint.

Complaint for Injunctive Relief 10




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

53.  PLAINTIFFS are informed and believe, and on such information and belief allege and aver, that
without the imposition of appropriate civil penalties and issuance of appropriate equitable relief,
DEFENDANTS will continue to violate the ESA and State law with respect to endangered species on the
BUILDING SITE.. PLAINTIFFS are further informed and believe, and on such information and belief
allege, that the relief requested in this Complaint will redress the injury to PLAINTIFFS and the public, and
prevent future injury and protect the interests of PLAINTIFFS and the public whose interests are, or may
be, adversely affected by DEFENDANTS' violations as set forth in this Complaint.
IX. PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, PLAINTIFES pray this Court grant the following relief:

54. Declare DEFENDANTS to have violated and to be in violation of the ESA;

55.  Issue an injunctive order requiring DEFENDANTS to immediately cease operations on all acres of
the BUILDING SITE until the proposed development project is in compliance with the ESA;

56. Order DEFENDANTS to pay PLAINTIFEFS’ reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs (including expert
witness fees), as provided by 16 U.S.C. § 1540 (2)(3)(A)(4) and applicable California law; and,

57.  Grant such other and further relief as may be just and proper.

DATED: October 23, 2006 LAW OFFICE OF JACK SILVER

/ 2
( )@CQ JJ&O{Z»

JACK BILVER

Attortey for Plaintiffs

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA RIVER WATCH,
ROBERT. G. EVANS, SHERRY PETERSEN,
DOUGLAS RAND EMERY
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Law Office of Jack Silver

P.O.Box 5469  Santa Rosa, California 95402 ' S o wetlands
Phone 707-528-8175 Fax 707-5288675
warrioreco@yahoo.com

July 21, 2006

VIA CERTIFIED MAIL -
RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED

Dirk Kempthorne, Secretary of the Interior Carlos M. Gutierrez, Secretary of Commerce
United States Department of the Interior United States Department of Commerce
1849 C Street, N.W. 1401 Constitution Avenue, NW , Room 5516
Washington, D.C. 20240 Washington, DC 20230
Mike Johanns, Secretary of Agriculture H. Dale Hall, Director
United States Department of Agriculture United States Department of the Interior
1400 Independence Avenue, S.W. United States Fish and Wildlife Service
Washington, DC 20250 1849 C Street, N.W.

Washington DC 20240
LTG Carl Strock, Commander David Allen, Region 1 Director
Headquarters United States Fish and Wildlife Service
United States Army Corps of Engineers Eastside Federal Complex
441 G Street, N.W. 911 N.E. 11th Ave.
Washington, D.C. 20314-1000 Portland, OR 97232-4181
United States Fish and Wildlife Service L. Ryan Broddrick , Director
Sacramento Fish and Wildlife Office California Department of Fish & Game
2800 Cottage Way, Room W-2605 1416 Ninth Street
Sacramento, California 95825 Sacramento, CA 95814
Colonel Ronald N. Light, District Engineer Robert W. Floerke, Regional Manager
U.S. Army Corps of Engineers California Dept. of Fish & Game - Region 3
Sacramento District P.O. Box 47
1325 J Street Yountville, CA, 94599

Sacramento, CA 95814-2922
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Lawrence McLaughlin, City Attorney
City of Sebastopol

P.O. Box 1776

714 Johnson Street

Sebastopol CA, 95472

Frank H. Schellinger, Registered Agent
Schellinger Construction Co.

3418 Standish Avenue

Santa Rosa, CA 95407

William R. Schellinger, Registered Agent
Concourse LL.C

1270 Airport Blvd.

Santa Rosa, CA 95403

William R. Schellinger, Registered Agent
Meadow Trail LI.C

1270 Airport Blvd.

Santa Rosa, CA 95403

William R. Schellinger, Registered Agent
Penbrook LL.C

1270 Airport Blvd.

Santa Rosa, CA 95403

Joc Ripple, Registered Agent

Fairview Village ot Orland Homeowners Assoc.

1270 Airport Blvd.
Santa Rosa, Ca 95403

John A. Pelayo, Registered Agent
Assessment Technologies USA, LC
111 Soledad Ave, Suite 1100

San Antonio, TX 78205-2229

William R. Schellinger, Registered Agent
Schellinger Properties, LLC

1270 Airport Blvd.

Santa Rosa, CA 95403

William R. Schellinger, Registered Agent
Arborita LLC

1270 Airport Blvd.

Santa Rosa, CA 95403

Frank H. Schellinger, Registered Agent
Heather Glen LLLC

1270 Airport Blvd.

Santa Rosa, CA 95403

William R. Schellinger, Registered Agent
Orland Fairview LLI.C

1270 Airport Blvd.

Santa Rosa, CA 95403

William R. Schellinger, Registered Agent
Winter Creek LLC

1270 Airport Blvd.

Santa Rosa, CA 95403

James I, Cotter, Registered Agent
Cotter Health Centers, Inc.

1070 Gravenstein Highway, South
Sebastopol, CA, 95472-4529

Marco Waaland, Owner
Golden Bear Biostudies
406 E Street

Santa Rosa, CA, 95404

RE: Notice of Violations and Intent to File Suit Under the Endangered Species Act

Dear VIOLATORS:

Endangered Species Act (“ESA™) § 11(g), 16 U.S.C. § 1540(g), requires that sixty (60) days prior
to the initiation of a civil action under the ESA, a person must give notice of his/her intent to sue to

the alleged violator and the Secretary of Interior, Commerce or Agriculture.
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[ 'am writing on behalf of Robert G. Evans, Sherry Petersen, Doug Emery and Northern California
River Watch, hereafter, “PROTECTORS”, to notify all of you, collectively referred to hereafter as
“VIOLATORS?”, of violations of Sections 7 and 9 of the Endangered Species Act, 16 U.S.C. § 1536
and §1538 with respect to property further identified in this Notice.

SITE DESCRIPTION

The plants and animals identified in this Notice as being affected by the violations of VIOLATORS
are located on property at 955, 995, and 997 Gravenstein Highway in the City of Sebastopol,
Assessor’s Parcel Numbers 004-390-003, 004-390-006, 004-390-009, 004-390-010, 004-390-011
and 151-010-012) a planned community consisting of 145 units (hereafter “the Site™). The Site is
approximately 21.35 acres and is located on the east side of the Highway to the immediate east of
its intersection with Fircrest Avenue. Existing land uses on the Site include 5 small residences and
an 1,800 square foot day care facility.

The majority of the Site is currently undeveloped, open space consisting of wetlands. seasonal vernal
pools and open grassland. The proposed zoning designation for the Site is Planned Community.
Approximately 19 acres of grasslands containing seasonal vernal pools and an additional 1.84 acres
which exist in the form of wet meadows, seasonal creek courses, vernal pools and vernal swales,
have been declared jurisdictional wetlands by the Army Corps of Engineers (“Corps™). The Site lics
within the range of the federally endangered Sonoma County Distinct Population Segment of the
California tiger salamander (Ambystoma californiense), Sonoma sunshine (Blennosperma hakeri).
Burke's goldfields (Lasthenia burkei), and Sebastopol meadowfoam (Limnanthes vinculans).

A mixed-use project proposes to develop the Site as a planned community consisting of 182 housing

units of various types and sizes (i.e. cottages, row houses, apartments, etc.), a neighborhood center
with retail and office space, and a small wetland reserve, (hereafter, “the Project™).

IMPACT ON LISTED PLANT SPECIES

Adverse Impact on Sebastopol Meadowfoam (Limnanthes vinculans)

The Project will have an adverse impact on Sebastopol meadowfoam listed as a Federal Endangered
Species under the ESA of 1973, as amended (16 U.S.C. § 1531 et seq). (Federal Register 56:61173;
December 2, 1991). The Project will destroy existing plants and most of the plants” habitat. Some
VIOLATORS have been agents for the destruction and removal of L. vinculans in the past and
currently threaten destruction and removal of L. vinculans.

The Fish and Wildlife Service (“FWS”) has jurisdiction over species that are formally listed as
threatened or endangered under the Federal ESA. The FWS sent a letter to the Corps on March 12,
2004 stating that surveys of federally listed plants had been conducted on the Site and no federally
listed plants had been found. FWS concluded the Project was not likely to have an adverse affect

on L. vinculans.

However, the surveys were not reliable. Survey protocols were inconsistent with accepted, standard
rare plant survey protocols required by Fish & Game, California Native Plant Society (“CNPS”), and
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FWS, that stipulate surveys be conducted during the appropriate flowering season for detection.
Obviously the best time NOT to find live species is during their non-growing or non-flowering
season. The Sebastopol meadowfoam is an annual with a growing season from late March to early
May. Many of the surveys were conducted outside the plant' s growing season and many were
conducted in winter and were necessarily limited by water covering the ground. The May 1998 and
March 2002 surveys conducted by Golden Bear Biostudies failed to disclose wetlands on a westerly
portion of the Site, within the footprint of the proposed Project, the result being that those surveys
completely ignored more than an acre of the Site's wetlands and wetlands plants. Furthermore, the
record neglects to indicate the May 1998 and March 2002 surveys were conducted under proper
protocols.

On December 9, 15and 17,2003, and January 2, 2004 the City of Sebastopol’s biological consultant,
Wetlands Research Associates (“WRA™) conducted surveys on the proposed project Site. WRA did
generate a comprehensive plant list and despite the fact that this survey was a limited winter
investigation, WRA also reported an undetermined species of meadowfoam, which may or may not
have been L. vinculans. During a May 5, 2005 survey of the site WRA again found clear evidence
of a healthy Limnanthes vinculans population.

On February 26, 2004, representatives from FWS and the Corps visited the Site to consider
California tiger salamander habitat suitability. This would have been another opportunity to add
another date to the list of plant survey dates, but unfortunately it was too early in the season to
observe most plant species.

On April 12, 2005, Dr. Philip Northen, professor of Biology at Sonoma State University and expert
in endangered plant species in the Sebastopol area, visited the Site at the request of local resident
Robert G. Evans. While walking the Site, Mr. Evans had spotted several plants he thought might
be meadowfoam and wanted Dr. Northen's opinion. Dr. Northen arrived at the Site about 4:30 p.m.,
accompanied by Robert G. Evans, Dea Fried, Remy Parker, President of the Milo Baker Chapter of
the CNPS and her husband Keith. Some of the plants in question proved to be L. douglasii ssp.
nivea, not an endangered plant, but a number were, indeed, . vinculans. Ms. Parker documented
the presence of this species photographically.

The two species of Limnanthes were growing in shallow water at the edges of vernal swales,
interspersed primarily within stands of semaphore grass (Pleuropogon californicus). Individuals of
L. vinculans were found in two different areas on the eastern portion of the Site. All of the
Sebastopol meadowfoam plants were very healthy and were in mid-stage of the bloom. The first area
containing L. vinculans lay 57 feet south of two large cottonwoods that lie on the Site’s northern
boundary, as Robert G. Evans measured by tape. It contained two clusters of the plant, each about
40 cm in diameter. One cluster contained 8-10 plants. Counting unopened buds, there were 25-30
flowers in this group. A second cluster contained 4 plants, with 5 flowers total. The second area
containing L. vinculans was located 60 feet south of the front porch of the southeastern most mobile
home in a mobile home park that lies on the Site’s northern boundary. Ten to fifteen plants were
growing in a cluster of about 1 meter diameter. Dr. Northen counted 25-30 flowers in this group.
Dr. Northen was not surprised at finding this endangered species growing naturally on the Site as
the habitat has a natural suitability for this species.
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Dr. Northen notified FWS of the "[p]resence of the endangered Sebastopol meadowfoam,
Limnanthes vinculans on the site of the proposed Laguna Vista development in Sebastopol." Letter
to Jan Knight, Chief, Endangered Species Division U. S. FWS, April 19, 2005.

On April 26, 2005 Fish & Game Environmental Scientist, Liam Davis, was sent by his supervisor,
Carl Wilcox, to survey the site. Mr. Davis identified and flagged a number of Sebastopol
meadowfoam plants growing on the proposed Laguna Vista project site, and stated in his Field Notes
that the plants were healthy and robust, and that there was no evidence of ground disturbance.

On May 5, 2005, Micki Kelly, Biological Consultant for WRA also found L. vinculans species. Dr.
Northen also noted that Dr. Robert E. Preston, Ph. D, Senior Botanist with Jones and Stokes, was
hired by the Schellinger Brothers firm to “examine the recently discovered Sebastopol
Meadowfoam,” and visited the Laguna Vista site on May 5, 2005. In his May 11, 2005 report to
Marco Waaland, owner of Golden Bear Biostudies, Dr. Preston noted: “I confirm that some of the
plants are Limnanthes vinculans,” and, “The wetlands in which the plants are growing arc seasonal
wetlands with species typical of vernal pools in the Santa Rosa area.” Further. “the vegetation of

those wetlands is consistent with the vegetation at other Sebastopol meadowfoam occurrences
reported in CNDDB.”

Without enlisting the assistance of either Liam Davis or Dr. Northen, Fish & Game Supervisor Carl
Wilcox, and Botanist Gene Cooley in company with Marco Waaland decided that the . vincudans
previously identified by four expert biologists (Davis, Northen, Kelly and Preston) had been
transplanted to the Site and was not occurring naturally. On May 23, 2005, Fish & Game Regional
Manager Robert W. Iloerke announced that Fish & Game “has determined that the plants were not
naturally occurring on the site.” Warden Matt Parlato was assigned by Fish & Game administrators
to investigate the matter as defined by Manager Floerke, but the record shows no report of such
investigation. In fact, the record is devoid of sufficient information or evidence to determine the
basis for Fish & Game’s determination regarding the occurrence of L. vinculans. Soon afterwards,
Fish & Game employees illegally removed the population of L. vinculans plants at the Site at an
unknown date in May 2005.

Ignoring all other evidence, FWS deferred to Fish & Game’s official opinion that the endangered
plants were not naturally occurring on the Site. As it turned out, the endangered Sebastopol
meadowfoam was growing naturally on the Site. L. vinculans populations had been documented
in the past and resident populations re-emerged again this year. On April 19, 2006, Eric Johnson
discovered a small clump of delicate white flowers he identified as a reoccurrence of the Sebastopol
meadowfoam. Mr. Johnson pointed the rare plant out to all interested viewers on an April 21, 2006
tour of the Site.

VIOLATIONS OF THE ESA

The Project will have significant adverse impacts on the endangered Sebastopol meadowfoam
(Limnanthes vinculans).

The fundamental purposes of the ESA are to provide a means to conserve endangered and threatened
species and the ecosystems on which they depend. 16 U.S.C. § 1531(b) Under the ESA’s citizen suit
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provision, any person may sue to enjoin any other person, including any federal, state, or local
governmental entity alleged to be in violation of the ESA or any of its implementing regulations.
16 U.S.C. § 1540(g)}1)(A)

ESA § 9 Violations
Section 9 of the ESA prohibits any person' from:

Removing and reducing to possession any such species from areas under federal
jurisdiction, maliciously damaging or destroying any such species on areas under
federal jurisdiction, or removing cutting digging up damaging or destroying any such
species on any other area in knowing violation of any state law or regulation or in the
course of violating any state criminal trespass law. ESA § 9 (2)(2)(B); 16 US.C. §
1538(a)(2)(B).

The ESA makes it unlawful for any person subject to the jurisdiction of the United States to “attempt
to commit, solicit another to commit, or cause to be committed,” any of these offenses. 16 USC §
1538(g) Thus the prohibition applies to government permitting of activities that may indirectly
cause a third party to remove, damage, or destroy a listed species in violation of federal or state law.
The Project includes areas under federal jurisdiction. The Site includes 1.84 acres of Corps
jurisdictional wetlands and approximately 19 acres of grasslands with scasonal vernal pools. The
presence of federal and state listed endangered species brings this land under federal jurisdiction.

The FWS has jurisdiction over species that are formally listed as threatened or endangered under the
Federal ESA. The removal of the endangered .. vinculans population from the Site by Fish & Game
or any other persons, agencies or entities, constitutes an element of an ongoing harm to the listed
species.

Fish & Game presented no documented evidence (photographs, soil cores, physical data) to support
its claim that the endangered plant was not naturally occurring and had been introduced. No
scientific peer review of the Fish & Game data and findings has been allowed. After the confiscation,
Fish & Game neglected to close the Site to tampering of evidence. Fish & Game's rush to
conclusions, despite all evidence to the contrary, and FWS's unquestioning capitulation to the state
agency' s ill-considered opinion constitute ongoing harm to the federally listed species.

The Draft Environmental Impact Report for the Project neglects to take the endangered Sebastopol
meadowfoam into account. As aresult, the Project, as proposed, constitutes an element of ongoing
harm to the federally listed species.

"ESA SEC. 3. For the purposes of this Act—

(13) The term “‘person’” means an individual, corporation, partnership, trust, association, or any other
private entity; or any officer, employee, agent, department, or instrumentality of the Federal Government,
of any State, municipality, or political subdivision of a State, or of any foreign government; any State,
municipality, or political subdivision of a State; or any other entity subject to the jurisdiction of the United
States.
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Under these circumstances injunctive relief under the ESA is necessary to prevent further harm to
the federally listed Sebastopol meadowfoam.

Violation of State Law is a Violation of the Federal ESA

Listed plants may not be cut, dug up, damaged or destroyed, or removed from any area (including
private lands) in knowing violation of a state law or regulation. ESA § 9 (a)(2)(B); 16 US.C. §
1538(a)(2)(B).

The May 2005 removal of the endangered L. vinculans from the Site by some of the VIOLATORS
including Fish & Game, the continued threat of destruction and removal, and the Project as
proposed, violate California' s endangered species laws: The California Endangered Species Act
(“CESA™) California Fish & Game Code § 2050, et seq., and the Native Plant Protection Act
(“NPPA™), Fish & Game Code § 1900, et seq.

The CESA prohibits any person’ from taking or attempting to take any fish, wildlife. or plant species
listed as endangered or threatencd or any such species that is candidate for listing under CESA. Fish
& Gamec Code § 2080, § 2085.

Fish & Game has jurisdiction over threatened or endangered specics formally listed by the State
under the CESA. L vinculans, was formally listed as endangered by Fish & Game in November
1979. Published at Title 14, California Code of Regulations, section 670.2.

Because VIOLATORS’ actions have resulted in the taking of individual members of a protected
plant, and because VIOLATORS’ proposed activities by way of the Project will destroy habitat
which will result in injury to existing and future L. vinculans, VIOLATORS arc in violation of the
CESA.

The ongoing harm to the Sebastopol meadowfoam at the Site falls into nonc of the CESA
exceptions. (See Fish & Game Code § § 2081(a); 2080.1; 2835; 2084) Injunctive relief is
appropriate under the CESA.

There is no authority in statute or regulation to set aside ESA procedural regulations by an agency’s
determining a population is “artificial”. Both Fish & Game and FWS are committed to regional
mitigation negotiations in the Santa Rosa/Sebastopol area, and F ish & Game takes title to mitigation
sites. Thus, these two entities are not wholly disinterested in the outcome of such determinations.
The landowner of the Site has other properties and contributes to mitigation banks managed or
regulated by Fish & Game and FWS. Understandably neither the state nor the federal agency wants
to provoke conflicts with the landowner or developer of the Project, but such niceties do not nullify

2 CESA does not define “person”. Fish & Game Code describes a “person” as “any natural person
or any partnership, corporation, limited liability company; trust, or other type of association.” Fish & Game
Code § 67. Unlike the federal ESA, CESA does not apply directly to state and local government agencies.
Government agencies can be held indirectly liable for violations of CESA through the actions of their
officials, employees, agents, contractors and others acting in the scope of their official duty. See 67 OPS Cal.
Atty Gen 355 (1984).
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the law. In the absence of an arm’s-length arbiter or some independent expert scientific review
panel, an injunction is necessary to prevent an adverse legal precedent.

The NPPA protects endangered and “rare” species and subspecies and varieties of wild . native
plants. Fish & Game Code §§ 1900, 1901.

The CNPS has placed L vinculans, on List 1B (rare or endangered throughout its range). Published
at Title 14, California Code of Regulations, § 670.2.

Once a plant is listed under the NPPA, Fish & Game is required to notify the owners of land upon
which any rare plants are growing of their existence, and to “provide such information about the
protection of such plants as may be appropriate.” Fish & Game Code § 1911. Upon locating and
identifying the population of Sebastopol meadowfoam on the Site, Fish & Game neglected to notify
the Site owner and/or property developers of the presence of the endangered plant, and neglected to
provide information about protection. Furthermore, Fish & Game and possibly other VIOLATORS
deliberately removed the entire population of the meadowfoam. Ignoring expert opinion, Fish &
Game declared the Scbastopol meadowfoam to have been introduced. Fish & Game presented no
documented evidence to support this claim. No scientific peer review of the Fish & Game data and
findings has been allowed  After the confiscation of the plant, Fish & Game neglected to close the
Site to tampering of evidence.

The FWS abandoned its responsibility to the Sebastopol meadowfoam’s status as an endangered
specics, and chose to defer to Fish & Game's official, unsupported, opinion that the Sebastopol
meadowfoam was fraudulently planted. Both Fish & Game and FWS have acted in an arbitrary and
capricious manner by:

1) Failing to heed staff biologist, Liam Davis' original Field Notes;

2) Failing to review the City of Sebastopol’s other environmental documents which demonstrate
that older records of L. vinculans were previously reported in the vicinity of the Sitc. and that
WRA detected a population of Limnanthes species on the Site in late 2003;

3) Failing to note that Golden Bear Biostudies incorrectly found no jurisdictional wetlands, and
that this was reversed by the Corps in a corrected wetland delineation; and,

4) Failing to conduct a comprehensive review of data on the habits, species associations, and
population size of L. vinculans in the California Diversity Database (“CCNDDB”). (The
CCNDDB 1s managed at the state level by Fish & Game, and in failing to review their own
document, they failed to note the record for L. vinculans immediately north of the proposed
Laguna Vista site.)

PROTECTORS are concerned about a precedent for collusion among VIOLATORS to invalidate
inconvenient occurrences of endangered species on the grounds they are allegedly transplanted,
especially when no rules of evidence or review apply.
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ESA § 7 Violations

ESA§ 7(a)(1) requires the Services’ to utilize all programs administered by them in furtherance of
the purposes of the ESA. ESA § 7 establishes a process by which each federal agency must consult
the applicable Service regarding impacts to listed species.

This consultation process is designed to insure that federal agencies comply with ESA § 7(a)(2) twin
duties: each federal agency must insure that any action it authorizes, funds, or carries out, in whole
or in part, is not likely to either jeopardize the continued existence of any listed species or result in
the destruction or adverse modification of designated critical habitat. ESA § 7(a)(2) imposes these
duties on each federal agency independent of any agreement or other action by the Services.

Federal agency “actions™ are defined broadly as “all activities or programs of any kind authorized.
funded, or carried out, in whole or in part, by federal agencies in the United States,” including
ongoing agency actions. 50 CFR § 402.02. Currently both the Corps and FWS have the discretion
to deny or modify the Project to protect the listed L. vinculans on the Site. Thus both the Corps and
FWS are subject to ESA § 7 obligations.

Dr. Northen notified FWS of the presence of the endangered Scbastopol meadowfoam, L. vinculans
as soon as he had identified it. No authority in statute or regulation allows a federal agency to set
aside ESA procedural obligations by merely pronouncing, without persuasive cvidence. that
endangered flowers were fraudulently planted by someone trying to stop a disputed housing
development.

Failure to Consult

Despite the obligation on all federal agencies connected with the Project to perform ESA § 7 duties,
no consultation has taken place regarding the presence of any endangered species, plant or animal.
FWS is trying to rely on the regulations for “informal consultation” that allow for preemption of a
formal ESA § 7 consultation by a determination of “not likely to adversely affect” (“NLTAA™).
Normally the NLTAA determination applies only when a species does not occur on a quad sheet or
is known to be entirely lacking in potential habitat (rule of reason, preponderance of cvidence), and
would not apply to this Site with suitable habitat, and past documented presence of ecologically
equivalent or identical species (i.e. the WRA 2003 observations, presence of co-occurring indicator
wetland species).

The Service had no non-arbitrary basis for a NLTAA determination to circumvent a biological
opinion. Itinstead relied on the flawed and arbitrary Fish & Game interpretation that the plants were
introduced. Even so, that does NOT mean “not likely to adversely affect” the population that was
IN FACT present, regardless of its origin. In short, the Service has a procedural “reason” for not
proceeding with a biological opinion, but that reason is invalid under regulation. There was in fact

* For ease of reference the ESA uses “Services” to refer collectively to FWS and the National
Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration). For the purposes of this Notice, FWS is the relevant Service,
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an adverse effect on the species known to the Service, but the Service arbitrarily chose to discount
or disqualify it without any scientific or legal basis -- just arbitrary deference to Fish & Game.

No Biological Opinion

The record for this project includes no ESA § 7 biological opinion. Normally an ESA § 7
consultation results in the preparation by the Service of a written biological opinion “detailing how
the agency action affects the species or its critical habitat.” 16 U.S.C. 1 536(b)(3)(A). Ifthe Service
concludes in the biological opinion that the agency action will not jeopardize the listed species but
that the action will nevertheless result in the taking of the species, then the Service must include with
the biological opinion a written, incidental take statement which, among other things, must
“specifly] the impact of such incidental taking on the species.” 16 U.S.C. 1536(b)(4)(B)(1).

No ESA § 7 Biological Assessment

“To facilitate compliance with the requirements of subsection (a)(2), each Federal
agency shall, with respect to any agency action of such agency for which no contract
for construction has been entered into, request of the Secretary information whether
any species which is listed or proposed to be listed may be present in the arca of such
proposed action. If the Sccretary advises, based on the best scientific and commercial
data available, that such species may be present, such agency shall conduct a biological
assessment for the purpose of identifying any endangered species or threatened
specics which is likely to be affected by such action "

ESA§ 7(c)(1) 16 U.S.C. 1536(c)(1).

The record does contain a Biological Assessment prepared for the City of Sebastopol on March 6.
2002, by Golden Bear Biostudies. This Assessment, which surveyed only a portion of the Site’s
vernal pool wetlands, stated the surveys “did not result in observation of any endangered species”.
The Assessment constitutes neither an ESA § 7 Biological Opinion nor an ESA § 7 Biological
Assessment:

1) A Biological Assessment is not a Biological Opinion;

2) The Assessment was prepared by the consultant of an interested party, rather than by a
federal agency;

3) The Assessment was not done following consultation with the Secretary of the Interior or in
consultation with any federal agency.

Although Golden Bear Biostudies might have applied for an exemption under 16 U.S.C. § 1536(g).
and conducted an independent biological assessment to identify any endangered species likely to be
affected by the Project, the extant Assessment does not qualify because it was not conducted under
the supervision of the appropriate federal agency. 16 U.S.C. § 1536(c)(2); see also 16 U.S.C. §
1536(g).
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IMPACT OF THE PROJECT ON LISTED ANIMAL SPECIES

Adverse Impact on the California Tiger Salamander (Ambystoma californiense)

The Project also will likely have an adverse impact on the California ti ger salamander (Ambystoma
californiense) listed as a Threatened/Endangered Species under the ESA of 1973, as amended (16
U.S.C. § 1531 et seq). (Federal Register 69:47211-47248: August 4, 2004)

Although the Golden Bear Biostudies Assessment did not report observations of 4. californiense,
the City of Sebastopol’s Draft Environmental Impact Report identifies potentially significant impacts
regarding the potential for the presence of the California tiger salamander on or adjacent to the Site.

ESA § 9 Violations

ESA § 9 prohibits any person from taking or attempting to take any endangered fish or wildlife
species within the U.S. ESA § 9; 16 U.S.C. § 1538(a)(1)(B). No specific intent to take a listed
species is required in order for one to be liable for an ESA § 9 violation. Rather, a person is liable
under ESA § 9 if he or she knowingly undertakes the act that results in a violation. The person
nced not know that the affected species was listed, or that the act undertaken would constitute a
violation of ESA § 9. Babbitt v Sweet ITome 515 US 687, 700-701 .

The ESA defines “take™ as to “harass, harm, pursue, hunt, shoot, wound, kill, trap, capture or collect,
or to attempt to engage in any such conduct.” 16 U.S.C. § 1532(19). By linking destruction and
modification of a listed species’ habitat with a prohibited “take,” (see 50 CFR § 17.3) the FWS
makes an extremely wide variety of human activities potentially subject to the ESA’s take
prohibition.

Although not observed on the Site, a possibility exists that California tiger salamandcr specics exist
on the Site. The City of Sebastopol’s Draft Environmental Impact Report admits of this possibility.
Thus the Project as proposed will lead to habitat destruction or modification which will likely
become the proximate cause of “actual death or injury” to the endangered California tiger salamander
in violation of ESA § 9.

ESA § 7 Violations

As set forth above ESA § 7 requires each federal agency to consult the applicable Service regarding
impacts to listed species.

Despite the fact that both the Corps and FWS have discretion to deny or modify the Project to
protect, and are subject to ESA § 7 obligations, no consultation has taken place. This failure to
consult is a violation of ESA § 7. Normally an ESA § 7 consultation results in the preparation by
the Service of a written biological opinion “detailing how the agency action affects the species or
its critical habitat.” 16 U.S.C. § 1536(b)(3)(A). No federal agency has generated an ESA § 7
biological opinion, or biological assessment as to whether the California tiger salamander may be
present in the area of the Project.
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" CONTACT INFORMATION

Robert G. Evansisanindividual residing at 1065 St. Helena Way, Sebastopol, CA 95472, Telephone
707-823-0609. Sherry Petersen is an individual residing at1310 Hurlbut Avenue, Sebastopol, CA
95472, Telephone 707-823-1594. Doug Emery is an individual residing at 7528 Gates Drive,
Sebastopol, CA. 95472, Telephone 707-829-7968. Northern California River Watch is a non-profit
corporation dedicated to the protection and enhancement of the waters of the State of California
including wetlands and vernal pools. It is organized under the laws of the State of California. Its
address is 6741 Sebastopol Avenue, Suite 140, Sebastopol, CA 95472, Telephone 707-824-4372.

PROTECTORS have retained legal counsel to represent them in this matter. All communications
should be addressed to:

Jack Silver, Esquire

Law Offices of Jack Silver
Post Office Box 5469

Santa Rosa, CA 95402-5469
Tel. 707-528-8175

Fax 707-528-8675
Ihm28843@sbcglobal.net

CONCLUSION

The violations set forth in this Notice affect the health, aesthetic, spiritual, recreational, creative and
personal enjoyment of PROTECTORS who reside and recreate in the affected communities
surrounding the Site.  Their health, use and enjoyment of this natural resource is specifically
impaired by VIOLATORS?’ violations of the ESA as set forth herein.

PROTECTORS believe this Notice sufficiently states grounds for filing suit. At the close of the
60-day notice period or shortly thereafter PROTECTORS intend to filea 16 U.S.C. § 1540(g)(1)(A)
citizen’s suit in United States District Court against VIOLATORS for violations of the federal ESA
and State law,

During the 60-day notice period, PROTECTORS are willing to discuss effective remedies for the
violations noted herein. However, if the VIOLATORS wish to pursue such discussions in the
absence of litigation, it is suggested those discussions be initiated within the next twenty (20) days
so that they may be completed before the end of the 60-day notice period. PROTECTORS do not
intend to delay the filing of a lawsuit if discussions are continuing when that period ends.

Very truly yours,

(A0

Silver
JS:Ihm
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March 2002 surveys conducted by Golden Bear Biostudies failed to disclose wetlands on a westerly
portion of the Site, within the footprint of the proposed Project, the result being that those surveys
completely ignored more than an acre of the Site's wetlands and wetlands plants. Furthermore, the
record neglects to indicate the May 1998 and March 2002 surveys were conducted under proper
protocols.

On December 9, 15 and 17,2003, and January 2, 2004 the City of Sebastopol’s biological consultant.
Wetlands Research Associates (“WRA”) conducted surveys on the proposed project Site. WRA did
generate a comprehensive plant list and despite the fact that this survey was a limited winter
investigation, WRA also reported an undetermined species of meadowfoam, which may or may not
have been L. vinculans. During a May 5, 2005 survey of the site WRA again found clear evidence
of a healthy Limnanthes vinculans population.

On February 26, 2004, representatives from FWS and the Corps visited the Site to consider
California tiger salamander habitat suitability. This would have been another opportunity to add
another date to the list of plant survey dates, but unfortunately it was (0o early in the season to
observe most plant species.

On April 12, 2005, Dr. Philip Northen, professor of Biology at Sonoma State University and expert
in endangered plant species in the Sebastopol area, visited the Site at the request of local resident
Robert G. Evans. While walking the Site, Mr. Evans had spotted several plants he thought might
be meadowfoam and wanted Dr. Northen's opinion. Dr. Northen arrived at the Site about 4:30 p.m.,
accompanied by Robert G. Evans, Dea Fried, Remy Parker, President of the Milo Baker Chapter of
the CNPS and her husband Keith. Some of the plants in question proved to be L. douglasii ssp.
nivea, not an endangered plant, but a number were, indeed, L. vinculans. Ms. Parker documented
the presence of this species photographically.

The two species of Limnanthes were growing in shallow water at the edges of vernal swales,
interspersed primarily within stands of semaphore grass (Pleuropogon californicus). Individuals of
L. vinculans were found in two different areas on the eastern portion of the Site. All of the
Sebastopol meadowfoam plants were very healthy and were in mid-stage of the bloom. The first arca
containing L. vinculans lay 57 feet south of two large cottonwoods that lie on the Site’s northern
boundary, as Robert G. Evans measured by tape. It contained two clusters of the plant, each about
40 cm in diameter. One cluster contained 8-10 plants. Counting unopened buds, there were 25-30
flowers in this group. A second cluster contained 4 plants, with 5 flowers total. The second area
containing L. vinculans was located 60 feet south of the front porch of the southeastern most mobile
home in a mobile home park that lies on the Site’s northern boundary. Ten to fifteen plants were
growing in a cluster of about 1 meter diameter. Dr. Northen counted 25-30 flowers in this group.
Dr. Northen was not surprised at finding this endangered species growing naturally on the Site as
the habitat has a natural suitability for this species.

Dr. Northen notified FWS of the "[p]resence of the endangered Sebastopol meadowfoam,
Limnanthes vinculans on the site of the proposed Laguna Vista development in Sebastopol.” Letter
to Jan Knight, Chief, Endangered Species Division U. S. FWS, April 19, 2005.
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On April 26, 2005 Fish & Game Environmental Scientist, Liam Davis, was sent by his supervisor,
Carl Wilcox, to survey the site. Mr. Davis identified and flagged a number of Sebastopol
meadowfoam plants growing on the proposed Laguna Vista project site, and stated in his Field Notes
that the plants were healthy and robust, and that there was no evidence of ground disturbance.

On May 5, 2005, Micki Kelly, Biological Consultant for WRA also found 7. vinculans species. Dr.
Northen also noted that Dr. Robert E. Preston, Ph. D, Senior Botanist with Jones and Stokes, was
hired by the Schellinger Brothers firm to “examine the recently discovered Sebastopol
Meadowfoam,” and visited the Laguna Vista site on May 5, 2005. In his May 11, 2005 report to
Marco Waaland, owner of Golden Bear Biostudies, Dr. Preston noted: “I confirm that some of the
plants are Limnanthes vinculans,” and, “The wetlands in which the plants are growing are seasonal
wetlands with species typical of vernal pools in the Santa Rosa area.” Further, “the vegetation of
those wetlands is consistent with the vegetation at other Sebastopol meadowfoam occurrences
reported in CNDDB.”

Without enlisting the assistance of either Liam Davis or Dr. Northen, Fish & Game Supervisor Carl
Wilcox, and Botanist Gene Cooley in company with Marco Waaland decided that the 1. vinculans
previously identified by four expert biologists (Davis, Northen, Kelly and Preston) had been
transplanted to the Site and was not occurring naturally. On May 23, 2005, Fish & Game Regional
Manager Robert W. Floerke announced that Fish & Game “has determined that the plants were not
naturally occurring on the site.” Warden Matt Parlato was assigned by Fish & Game administrators
to investigate the matter as defined by Manager Floerke, but the record shows no report of such
investigation. In fact, the record is devoid of sufficient information or evidence to determine the
basis for Fish & Game’s determination regarding the occurrence of L. vinculans. Soon afterwards,
Fish & Game employees illegally removed the population of L. vinculans plants at the Site at an
unknown date in May 2005.

Ignoring all other evidence, FWS deferred to Fish & Game’s official opinion that the endangered
plants were not naturally occurring on the Site. As it turned out, the endangered Sebastopol
meadowfoam was growing naturally on the Site. L. vinculans populations had been documented
in the past and resident populations re-emerged again this year. On April 19, 2006, Eric Johnson
discovered a small clump of delicate white flowers he identified as a reoccurrence of the Sebastopol
meadowfoam. Mr. Johnson pointed the rare plant out to all interested viewers on an April 21, 2006
tour of the Site.

VIOLATIONS OF THE ESA

The Project will have significant adverse impacts on the endangered Sebastopol meadowfoam
(Limnanthes vinculans).

The fundamental purposes of the ESA are to provide a means to conserve endangered and threatened
species and the ecosystems on which they depend. 16 U.S.C. § 1531(b) Under the ESA’s citizen suit
provision, any person may sue to enjoin any other person, including any federal, state, or local
governmental entity alleged to be in violation of the ESA or any of its implementing regulations.
16 U.S.C. § 1540(g)(1)(A)
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ESA § 9 Violations
Section 9 of the ESA prohibits any person' from:

Removing and reducing to possession any such species from areas under federal
jurisdiction, maliciously damaging or destroying any such species on areas under
federal jurisdiction, or removing cutting di gging up damaging or destroying any such
species on any other area in knowing violation of any state law or regulation or in the
course of violating any state criminal trespass law. ESA § 9 (@)(2)B); 16 US.C. §
1538(a)(2)(B).

The ESA makes it unlawful for any person subject to the jurisdiction of the United States to “attempt
to commit, solicit another to commit, or cause to be committed,” any of these offenses. 16 USC §
1538(g) Thus the prohibition applies to government permitting of activities that may indirectly
cause a third party to remove, damage, or destroy a listed species in violation of federal or state law.
The Project includes areas under federal jurisdiction. The Site includes 1.84 acres of Corps
jurisdictional wetlands and approximately 19 acres of grasslands with seasonal vernal pools. The
presence of federal and state listed endangered species brings this land under federal jurisdiction.

The FWS has jurisdiction over species that are formally listed as threatened or endangered under the
Federal ESA. The removal of the endangered L. vinculans population from the Site by Fish & Game
or any other persons, agencies or entities, constitutes an element of an ongoing harm to the listed
species.

Fish & Game presented no documented evidence (photographs, soil cores, physical data) to support
its claim that the endangered plant was not naturally occurring and had been introduced. No
scientific peer review of the Fish & Game data and findings has been allowed. After the confiscation,
Fish & Game neglected to close the Site to tampering of evidence. Fish & Game's rush to
conclusions, despite all evidence to the contrary, and FWS's unquestioning capitulation to the state
agency' s ill-considered opinion constitute ongoing harm to the federally listed species.

The Draft Environmental Impact Report for the Project neglects to take the endangered Sebastopol
meadowfoam into account. As aresult, the Project, as proposed, constitutes an element of ongoing
harm to the federally listed species.

Under these circumstances injunctive relief under the ESA is necessary to prevent further harm to
the federally listed Sebastopol meadowfoam.

" ESA SEC. 3. For the purposes of this Act—

(13) The term *‘person’” means an individual, corporation, partnership, trust, association, or any other
private entity; or any officer, employee, agent, department, or instrumentality of the Federal Government,
of any State, municipality, or political subdivision of a State, or of any foreign government; any State,
municipality, or political subdivision of a State; or any other entity subject to the jurisdiction of the United
States.
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Violation of State Law is a Violation of the Federal ESA

Listed plants may not be cut, dug up, damaged or destroyed, or removed from any area (including
private lands) in knowing violation of a state law or regulation. ESA § 9 (a)(2)(B); 16 U.S.C. §
1538(a)(2)(B).

The May 2005 removal of the endangered L. vinculans from the Site by some of the VIOLATORS
including Fish & Game, the continued threat of destruction and removal, and the Project as
proposed. violate California' s endangered species laws: The California Endangered Species Act
("CESA”™) California Fish & Game Code § 2050, et seq., and the Native Plant Protection Act
("NPPA?), Fish & Game Code § 1900, et seq.

The CESA prohibits any person® from taking or attempting to take any fish, wildlife, or plant species
listed as endangered or threatened or any such species that is candidate for listing under CESA. Fish
& Game Code § 2080, § 2085.

Fish & Game has jurisdiction over threatened or endangered species formally listed by the State
under the CESA. L vinculans, was formally listed as endangered by Fish & Game in November
1979. Published at Title 14, California Code of Regulations, section 670.2.

Because VIOLATORS® actions have resulted in the taking of individual members of a protected
plant, and because VIOLATORS’ proposed activities by way of the Project will destroy habitat
which will result in injury to existing and future L. vinculans, VIOLATORS are in violation of the
CESA.

The ongoing harm to the Sebastopol meadowfoam at the Site falls into none of the CESA
exceptions. (See Fish & Game Code § § 2081(a); 2080.1; 2835: 2084) Injunctive relief is
appropriate under the CESA.

There is no authority in statute or regulation to set aside ESA procedural regulations by an agency’s
determining a population is “artificial”. Both Fish & Game and FWS are committed to regional
mitigation negotiations in the Santa Rosa/Sebastopol area, and Fish & Game takes title to mitigation
sites. Thus, these two entities are not wholly disinterested in the outcome of such determinations.
The landowner of the Site has other properties and contributes to mitigation banks managed or
regulated by Fish & Game and FWS. Understandably neither the state nor the federal agency wants
to provoke conflicts with the landowner or developer of the Project, but such niceties do not nullify
the law. In the absence of an arm’s-length arbiter or some independent expert scientific review
panel, an injunction is necessary to prevent an adverse legal precedent.

? CESA does not define “person”. Fish & Game Code describes a “person” as “any natural person
or any partnership, corporation, limited liability company; trust, or other type of association.” Fish & Game
Code § 67. Unlike the federal ESA, CESA does not apply directly to state and local government agencies.
Government agencies can be held indirectly liable for violations of CESA through the actions of their
officials, employees, agents, contractors and others acting in the scope of their official duty. See 67 OPS Cal.
Atty Gen 355 (1984).
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